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Bloomfield Early 19th century
Centreville vicinity
Private

Bloomfield is a large brick house dating to the
early 19th century. It is similar to the side hall,
double parlor plan town houses popular in nearby
Centreville and Chestertown, but originally had a

one story brick hyphen and storv-and-a-half wing.

Two photographs taken in 1916 show the house in its
original form. Soon after the photographs were taken,
the wing and hyphen were raised to 2 1/2 stories and
the entire building was stuccoed. Although other
changes were made to the interior, much of the original
Fedei'al woodwork has remained.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Bloomfield is located on the east side of

Marvland Route 213 immediately to the south of White

Marsh Road, and approximately 1 1/2 miles north
of Centreville. The house faces west down a

long driveway to Route 213. Several small
outbuildings are adjacent to the north wing

of the house, and a large group of farm buildings
lie to the east.

The house at Bloomfield has undergone a
fairly‘complex development, but one which can
be sorted out by architectural analysis and
with the aid of two photographs taken in
October 1916. These photographs were taken
shortly before a major renovation, and are
invaluable as a record of the early appearance
of the house.

The original main section of Bloomfield
remains basically intact., It consists of a
two-and-one-half story brick Federal house with
a side hall-double parlour plan. A story-and-a-
half brick wing is joined to the north gable

of the main house by a one story brick hyphen.

ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

Although conclusive evidence has been covered by
stucco and by later alterations, it would appear that
the hyphen and north wing are early if not original.
A second brick wing projects from the rear of the
north wing. This was one story high with a loft,

and was separated from the rest of the structure by

a five foot passage or hyphen.

Shortly after the photographs were taken in 1916,
the entire building was renovated. The hyprhen and
both wings were raised to two-and-one-half stories,
and both hyphens were enlarged. The entire bhuilding

was covered with stucco and numerous cosmetic changes

~ were made to the exterior. The interior was also

changed, though the basic plan and ﬁost of the original
details remain intact.

The main house is two-and-one-half stories high
on a full cellar, three bays wide and two rooms deep,
with a vair of massive chimneys rising on the socuth
gable. The principal facade faces west, and is
composed of an arched entrance door in the north bay
and nine-over-nine windows in the center and south
bays on the first floor, three nine-over-nine windows

on the second floor, and two six-over-six pitched-




QA-84

CONTINUATION SHEET

7.2 DESCRIPTION

roof dormers on the third floor. Large cellar windows
are located below each first floor opening. These
originally had a single six-light sash behind a grill
of horizontal diamond section wood bars. A 20th
century entrance porch now covers the main door, but
the original molded surround with fluted keystone
remains intact, as well as the original paneled door
and fan-light transom. The stucco conceals the
brickwork, but the 1916 photograph shows that the
facade of both the main house and the north wing are
laid in Flemish bond. The original cornice is gone
and has been replaced with a relatively sinmple

box cornice.

The south gable wall is dominéted by the two
chimneys, which project approximately nine inches
from the wall surface. They do not taper or corbel
back, but rise as straight shafts all the way to the
caps. Enough stucco is missing from this wall to
determine that the brickwork is laid in five course
bond. The fenestration pattern is symmetrical,
with a single window to the east and west of the
chimneys on eéch floor. These consist of a six-light

cellar window on each side, and nine-over-nine
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7.3 DESCRIPTION

windows on the first_and second floors. A six-over-six
window in the center of the upper gable is the only
window located between the chimneys. The rakeboard

is of uncertain vintage, but probably dates to the
circa 1917 alterations. It consists of a plain flat
board with a small crown mold.

On the rear facade, several alterations have
occurred. In the 1916 photograph, there is a two
story porch across the rear facade, but this was
demolished in recent years. The fenestration is
similar to the front facade, but varies in several
respects. There are only two cellar windoﬁs, one
each in the south and center bays. The first floor
déor is relatively simple, and lacks an arched
opvening and transom. On the second floor, a door
to the second floor porch remains in the south bay,
and the upper sash of the north window has been
blocked up and eliminated. Two six-over-six dormers
remain in place on the third floor.

The majority of the north gable is covered by
the enlarged hyphen. The only openings in this wall
are a six-~light cellar window which is not original,

and one original six-over-six window in the upper gable.
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7.4 DESCRIPTION

This window is offset to the east and was undoubtedly
one of a pair, but the west window was eliminated when
the hyprhen was raised.

The hyphen on the north gable is 12 feet wide and
is set back approximately 14 inches from the fropt
facade of both the main house and the wing. It was
originally only one story high and was set back from
the rear facade of the‘wing approximately three feet.
When it was raised to two-and-one-half stories, the
rear wall was pushed back flush with the rear facade
of the wing. The 1916 photograph shows the hyphen
before these changes were made, with the original
paneled door and a simple transomvin the center of
each facade,

The north wing, adjoining the hyphen, is 24 feet
long and 22 feet deep. It is one~and-one-half stories
high and three bays wide, with a single flush chimney
at the north end of the pitched gable roof.

On the west facade, the door is located in the
center bay, flanked by a pair of nine-over-nine windows.
Small cellar windows are placed directiy below each
first floor window, and two six-over-six pitched roof

dormers are located on the second floor. The door ig‘
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paneled, with a simple transom.

The chimney is-centered on the north gable, with
a pair of nine-over-nine windows flanking it on the
first floor, and small cellar windows directly below
these openings.

The rear facade is partially covered by a rear
kitchen wing, leaving a single nine-over-nine window
near the center on the first floor and a six-over-six
dormer to the left of center on the second floor. A
pair of small windows on the second floor of the south
gable originally overlooked the roof of the hyphen,
but these were eliminated when the wings énd hyphen
were raised._

The rear kitchen wing was also brick, one story
high with a loft, and apparently only two bays wide.
Only the south facade and the east gable are visible
in the early photographs. These show two six~over-six
windows on the south facade and a single small window
to the right of the chimney in the upper east gable.

A box cornice with both crown mold and bed mold is
also visibkle in the early photographs. These make it
clear that this wing was separated from the north wing

by a short passage, approximateiy five feet wide.
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This was eliminated when the renovations occurred,
and was incorporated into the enlarged building.

When the wings and hyphen were raised, the first
floor fenestration pattern was generally repeated
on the upper floors. Dormer windows were retained,
and the chimneys raised. The stucco covering was no
doubt added to cover the variations in the brickwork.

The interior of the main house consists of a
typical Federal side hall, double parlour plan. The
hall is located along the north gable wall, with the
stair rising along the exterior wall to a landing
at the east end of the hall. It has an opén string
carriage with delicate turned newels and square
ballusters. The stair ends are decorated with
scrolled brackets, and the area below the carriage
is paneled. A four-panel door below the landing
leads to an interior cellar stair.

Wide arched doorways in the west end of the
hall provide passage into the front varlour on one
side and down several steps to the hyphen on the
other. These openings have paneled soffits and jambs,
but date to the circa 1917 renovation.

The front (west) parlour is joined to the rear
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parlour by a wide doorway, while the rear parlour

is connected to the hall with a normal doorway and a
paneled door. The large opening between the parlours
is quite remarkable. The soffits and jambs are paneled,
and a pair of large, reeded Corinthian columns are
set into the opening near eaéh jamb. These are not
unlike the highly decorative columns and capitals
that were advertized by mail order catalogues in the
early 20th century, but these would appear to be
contemporary with the paneling, which is typical of
the 1840's and 1850's.

Both parlours have fireplaces on the center of
the south wall, and both fireplaces are set off by
splendid Federal mantels. In the east parlour,
there is an original built-in cupboard with paneled
doors and an arched surround to the right of the
fireplace. Handsome molded baseboard and chairrail
encircles both rooms, and all of the original window
architraves have survived. The remaining original
door opening and all window openings have paneled
soffits and jambs.

The second floor also utilize: the side hall

rlan, but with the west end of the hall partitionad
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to form an additional chamber. The interior doors
between the hall and all three chambers have been
modified during the circa 1917 renovation to include
large transoms above the opening. The original
trim has been very skillfully altered to accommodate
this change, and new molded surrounds with similar
profiles were added where necessary. The front and
rear chambers retain most of the original trim,
including two Federal mantels and a relatively sinple
cupboard next to the fireplace in the east parlour.
Small triangular closets have been added in each
room, and the door in the east chamber that led to
the now-demolished porch was retrimmed in 1917,
Baseboard and chairrail have remained intact, as well
as the stair to the third floor.

The third floor was probably not used as living
space until after the 20th century renovations. The

plaster and trim are relatively new, and the floor

rlan has been modified, forming a single large chamber,

a stair hall, and two small storage areas.
The cellar is identical in plan to the first
floor, with the rooms delineated by brick partition

walls that have been extensively repaired. There is
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an arched chimney base below the west chimney and a
blocked fireplace in the east chimney. What appears
to be an original bulkhead entrance in the north gable
wall has been bricked up, and an original cellar window
opening in the same wall has been opened up into a
door leading through a narrow vassage to a cellar
below the north wing. Part of the original window
frame remains in the upper portion of the door opening,
and this evidence suggests that at least the hyphen,
if not the wing, was an early addition rather than
an original feature.

The first floor of both the hyohen and the rear

wing have been completely altered, and little remains

to sﬁggest the'early appearance, The north wing,

however, remains basically intact on the first floor.
It presently consists of a single large room with a
fireplace on the north wall. A handsome Federal mantel
and virtually all of the original trim remain in place.
It is not clear whether this was always one large roon,
but the dimensions of the wing combined with the
elaborate mantel suggest it probably was, and may have
served as a rather formal dining room and parlour.

The upper floors of both wings and the hyphen were

completely renovated in this century.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Bloomfield is a large brick house dating to
the early 19th century. It is similar to the side
hall, double parlor plan town houses popular
in nearby Centreville and Chestertown, but originally
had a one story brick hyphen and story-and-a-half
wing. Two photographs taken in 1916 show the

i

house in its original form. Soon after the photo-

e

graphs were taken, the wing and hyphen were raised
to 2 1/2 stories and the entire building was
stuccoed. Although other changes were made to

the interior, much of the original Federal wood-

work has remained.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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QA-84 Bloomfield

Centerville vicinity, Md.
Orlando Ricout V, 1978 (MHT)
Rear elevation, camera facing NW
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Centerville vicinity, Md.
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orlando Ridout V.,
Interior, North wall of wing
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